Form 10-306 (Oct. 1972)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR HEET PHOOES 773
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM FOR FEDERAL PROPERTIES

(Type all entries - complete applicable sections)

•	•	~	,	- -	
				California	
				Carrornia	

San Diego

FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY	DATE	R to M	2	Si	1975
		A 16.31 A			

I. NAME										
U. S. Court House										
AND/OR HISTORIC:	AND/OR HISTORIC:									
U. S. Custom a	nd Court Ho	use								
2. LOCATION										
STREET AND NUMBER:										
L	325 W. F Street (Union and F Streets)									
San Diego										
STATE:			CODE	COUNTY:			ODE			
California			-06	San I	Diego		073			
3. CLASSIFICATION	T									
CATEGORY (Check One)	(OWNER	SHIP		STATUS	ACCESSIE TO THE PU				
☐ District ☒ Building	X Public	Publi	c Acquisit	ion:	◯X Occupied	Yes:				
Site Structure	Private		In Proce		Unoccupied	Restricte	1			
Object	Both		Being C	onsidered	Preservation work	∑ Unrestric	:ted			
					in progress	□ No				
PRESENT USE (Check One or I				<u> </u>		~				
] Park	. 6	(Transportation	Comment	5			
Educational Mi		JPrivo ∃Relig	te Resider	ice	Other (Specify)					
Entertainment Mu] Scien								
4. AGENCY		_								
REGIONAL HEADQUARTERS: San Francisco,			***************************************	STREE 40	et and number:) 4th Street		California			
CITY OR TOWN:		,		STATE		CODE				
San Francisco				Ca	alifornia	06	1a			
5. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC						723.				
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF	•	~ O&	c:				္လ ္မ			
San Diego Coun	ty Recorder	S O1.	1106		/OV-WECEN	77	SanDi			
1222 First Ave	nue				MAY o		Die			
CITY OR TOWN:				STATE	E: 614	1970 CODE				
San Diego				C	alifornia NATION,	AL M	F			
	***************************************				Con registe	$R = \{0\}$				
6. REPRESENTATION IN EXIST	ING SURVEYS									
New San Diego	(Book 10 n.	456	S B1.	39)	1101	7	EN TRY			
DATE OF SURVEY: 1850		deral		State	County X La	ıcal	R			
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY R	DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:									
County Records	County Recorders Office, City Operations Building									
STREET AND NUMBER:	STREET AND NUMBER:									
	1222 First Avenue									
city or town: San Diego				STATE	alifornia	COD				
Dan Diego						00	5 3			

7.	DESCRIPTION							
					(Check	One)		
	CONDITION	Excellent	Good	🔀 Fair		Deteri arated	Ruin:	s Unexpased
	CONDITION		(Check One)			(Chec	ck One)
		X Alte	ered [Unaltered			Moved	🔀 Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The 1913 4-story Custom and Court House blends elements of Spanish Colonial and classical revival styles in a reinforced concrete structure with stucco exterior walls. The space enclosed, including basement is 57,000 sq.ft. The building occupies one-half square block with a 160 ft. front facade on F St., the sides extending 76 ft. along Union and State Sts. Two 5-story square towers with chamfered corners project slightly beyond the main rectangular mass on the F St. side; between the towers are steps to a raised 2-story portico supported on columns with Ionic capitals. Two wings extend from the main mass to the south toward G St. The symmetrical plan is in the shape of a double T with the continuous horizontal bar the front facade on F St., the two wings the verticals. Front and side entrances led originally to a public lobby the length of the facade.

Roofs are hipped on the main block and on the wings are gabled; tile is laid on sheet metal. Floors are concrete slab. The first floor has round arched windows and doors, screened with iron grilles or double gates. Ornamental brackets of Spanish Colonial design projecting from walls at side entrances and portico support lamps.

Before 1936 the following changes were made: the U-shaped court between the wings was filled in with a 1-story flat-roofed structure; the L-shaped court on the east was filled in with a structure projecting 6 ft. beyond the existing side wall; is one story with flat roof. The second story court room windows on the south were closed over. Loading docks were added.

Subsequent changes were: three new courtrooms accommodated to existing spaces, offices repartitioned. The lobby was partitioned off into offices, leaving a narrow hall at the main entrance to an interior corridor.

Traces of the original interiors remain in the east tower where there is an open stair well to the fifth level. The floor covering here is verde granite laid between strips of red marble, plinths are dark verde marble, treads and risers of the stairs are gray granite. The only remaining pilasters typical of the interiors are here; they have Tuscan capitals and egg and dart detail. On the coffered plaster ceiling is a band of egg and dart molding.

Originally, the only courtroom was on the second floor; pilasters and coffered ceilings were intact until remodeled in 1968 following a fire. The previous year, 1967, two courtrooms were built on the first floor in existing spaces. All four courtrooms are now wood paneled. Most ceilings have been furred down and acoustical tile applied; floor coverings are green terrazzo, composition tile or carpeting.

In 1971 and 1972 two annexes on the south extended the facility to G St. These are one-story structures (except for a 2-story portion of Annex A) used for courtrooms; the area is 25,000 sq.ft. Construction is of steel-framed sandwich panels.

В.	SIGNIFICANCE			
	PERIOD (Check One or More as App	propriate)		
	Pre-Columbian	16th Century	18th Century	🔀 20th Century
	15th Century	17th Century	19th Century	
	SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable a	and Known) 1913 (W	vorking drawings 1	1911, occupied 1913)
	AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check	One or More as Appropri	iate)	
	Aboriginal	Education	Political	Urban Planning
	Prehistoric	Engineering	Religion/Phi-	Other (Specify)
	Historic	Industry	tosophy	
	Agri culture	Invention	Science	
	🔀 Architecture	Landscape	Sculpture	
	☐ Art	Architecture	Social/Human-	
	Commerce	Literature	itarian	
	Communications	Military	Theater	
	Conservation	Music	Transportation	

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The only remaining classical revival facade in San Diego is that of the 1913 Custom and Court House. Of significance is the skillful blending of the classical and Spanish Colonial revival styles, the latter seen in the towers, arched openings, deep reveals, tile roofs and other Mediterranean style features.

The outstanding classical element in the design is the 70-ft. long raised portico between two projecting towers; concrete columns with Ionic capitals support roof of the 2-story portico. Well-scaled arched openings on the first floor, and rectangular ones without moldings on the second, are elements of the fine architectural space. Originally the portico gave onto a noble lobby, now lost through partitioning. Regional as well as Spanish Colonial in character is the stucco covering of the reinforced concrete-framed building.

The original plan, wholly symmetrical, combined the formal and informal; the shape resembled a 2-stemmed T, the horizontal bar the front facade, the stems the two wings to the south. The facade is monumental, the wings (originally enclosing a U-shaped court and flanked by courts) were accommodations to function, to sun and comfort.

The only architect listed on the plans is James Knox Taylor, Treasury Dept. Supervising Architect. The working drawings were approved by Structural Engineer E. C. Heald on Mar. 11, 1911. The building was completed in 1913 at a cost of \$763,000.

The Custom and Court House figures in the history of the establishment of a new town center in San Diego, a struggle culminating in 1871 in the removal "in the dead of night" of county records to "New Town." The site of the building was part of an addition commonly called "Davis' New Town," surveyed in 1850 and approved by the alcalde the same year. Listed as one of two surveyors was A. B. Gray, head of a surveying party for the U.S. Bounds Commission to fix the boundary between the U.S. and Mexico; another surveyor was Lieut. T. D. Johns who had come to San Diego to select a site for an army barracks and was persuaded to locate it in New Town. The square block chosen for the barracks was in 1908 turned over by the War Dept. to the Dept. of the Treasury for the sum of \$15,000. By

9,	MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES
	McGrew, Clarence Alan, City of San Diego and San Diego County, American Historical Society, 1922, pp. 185, 197.
	San Diego Union, Dec. 12, 1970, Sec. B, p. 1, col. 5.
	McPhail, Elizabeth, C., The Story of New San Diego, Pioneer, 1969.

CONTRACT OF STREET							\$250°F		***************************************					
10.	DET MING A MEGIANOPE EGGATING THE THOTERT							LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES						
Ì	CORNER LATITUDE				LONGITU	DE	R		ATITUD	E		ONGITUD	E	
Ì		Degrees Minutes Seconds De		Degrees Minutes	Seconds		Degrees	Minutes	Seconds	Degrees Minutes Seco				
Ì	NW	0	,	"	0,	,,		32°	42 '	54 ''	117	09	11	
	NE	٥	,	"	۰ ,	"		32	14	34		0)	77	
ł	SE .	; i; 0	,	"	0.15.1.1.	111211						1"	· '	
	SW	٥	,	,,	0 ,	,,								
					MINATED PROPE									
	LIST AL	LSTATES	AND COL	JNTIE	FOR PROPERT			APPING ST	ATE OR	COUNTY	OUNDARIE	s		
	SIA IC:				**	CODE	┦`	JOON 1 Y.		\times			CODE	
							1		/\$	D. A	7 P	. Z \		
	STATE:		1.			CODE	۱ ۹	COUNTY:	1	Ý	SEIVE]]		CODE	
							4	COUNTY:	3742	MAY	n	1,50	ļ	
	STATE:		•			CODE	- '	COUNTY		Mare	J 13/m	100	CODE	
							4	0.11157	1	REO.	UNAT	_/-/_		
	STATE:					CODE	- (COUNTY:	150	5	$S7E_{P}^{-1}$	19/	CODE	
F-12-22									\ 	Sel service				
		REPARE	DBA								DATE			
			AcCon	. 21	chitectura	l histo	7 7 *	ian		-		. 30,	1073	
-		S ADDRES		, a.	- CIII to C ta I a.	1111560		1011	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		IVIAI	. 50,	1713	
										Sec. 11.		a in the	17	
	STOFFT	AND NUME	350.							PHON	F.			
		34 Bev		Ave	nue		(213) 396-2033							
	CITYOR						STATE					, 3,0	CODE	
		ınta Mo	nica			• •		Califo	rnia				J-06-	
12	CERTIF	ICATION	OF NON	IINAT	ION			N	ATIONA	L REGIST	ER VERII	TICATIO		
W.E.S	20.7.6.200.00000000000000000000000000000			220020000					0.0000000000000000000000000000000000000					
	State Li	aison Offi	cer reco	mmena	lation:		I hereby certify that this property is included in the							
	Ye	es	وسر	1	15			National Register.						
	□ No)	N/)	/)	12	3								
	□ No	one	1	4	1///	()								
	4.4	State	Linison	Office	r Signature	/-/		Director, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation						
		2.01.	2.0	0										
	In comp	liance with	n Execut	ive O	der 11593/Lher	eby								
	nominate	e this prop	erty to t	he Na	tional Register,	certify-					•			
	ing that the State Liaison Officer has been allowed 90 days in which to present the nomination to the State Review Board and to evaluate its significance. The recommended level of significance is National State						1 3 1 A 18 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1							
								Date						
							ATTEST:						×	
	Fleven Kullenburn 2/6/74							11	,	Q. 1	·/	, 1 <u> 17</u> 1	u zazz	
	Feder	al Represer	ntative Si	gnature	Date	,		Ille	M	- Ul	un	7/	<u></u>	
	Historic Preservation							Keeper of The National Register						
					· ·		Iny sou							
	Liaison Officer							Date						

Form 10-300a (July 1969)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

California

COUNTY
San Diego

FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER

JAN 2 9 1975

STATE

(Continuation Sheet)

(Number all entries)

U.S. Court House, San Diego, California

8. Significance con't

the time plans for the Custom House were drawn San Diego city and county offices occupied land adjoining the site, the former town center having been abandoned.

The lack of critical attention given the building is due to a taste developed in San Diego for purer Spanish Colonial styles, first through Irving Gill's now famous 1906-1913 buildings in a severe style closer to the Franciscan Missions; then the same year the Custom House was completed (1913) Bertram G. Goodheu was planning the California Building in Balboa Park in the more ornate Spanish Colonial Churrigueresque style. The mixed classical and Spanish Colonial revival style Custom House received appreciation late, and by that time it had suffered damage to plan and destruction of interiors. The fabric of the building is sound, and front and west facades in their original state, and the lobby is recoverable. To restore the lobby is to return to the public a fine public space of architectural significance.



U.S. COURT HOUSE (U.S. CUSTOM AND COURT HOUSE) 1913
325 W. F St., SAN DIEGO, CAL. 04

LAT. 320 42' 54" 49"

LONG. 117 09' 44" 57"

MAP SOURCE: Survey of New San Diego, 1850

